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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements are filed as part of this Form 17-Q.

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operations

Financial Highlights
Unaudited Audited
In Millions (PhP) 30-Jun-21 31-Dec-20 31-Dec-19
Balance Sheet
Assets 11,471 11,168 10,891
Liabilities 631 504 661
Stockholders' Equity 10,840 10,663 10,231
Book Value per Share 2.5813 2.5392 2.4361
Income State ment
Revenues 509 1,038 1,498
Expenses =225 -616 =723
Other Income / (Charges) -115 4 0
Net Income 170 426 775
Earnings per Share 0.0404 0.1015 0.1846

Results of Operations for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

2Q21 was all still about COVID. As cases persist above 10k per day, NCR+ is put into hard lockdown which extends
all the way into May. We go into GCQ with heightened restrictions afterwards but the threat rises again as globally
the Delta variant is already hitting places like Israel where most of the population is already vaccinated. We are also
monitoring the shift in language by the Fed about when it would start to taper and hike rates as it sees a recovery in
the US already underway. With the anticipation of rate hikes, 10y UST moves all the way to around 1.70 but seems
to have found a ceiling there. The Fed also moves up its timeline for rate hikes to as soon as 2023. Previously it had
said that it would only begin in 2024. However, from a high of 1.70, 10y UST falls to 1.35 before finally settling
around 1.50 levels as market digests the Fed news. In the Philippines, BSP remains very accommodative especially
because of the COVID situation. BSP keeps key rate at 2% with no plans on raising anytime soon. However market
players were on edge because oil prices continue to rise to $70/bbl. Inflation seems to have hit their highs however
at 4.5% with pork prices in check due to more importation and price freezes. In the local bond space, bonds were
being bought as market anticipates inflation already peaked and growth slowing down due to covid. BTR successfully
reissues Syr bonds at 3.3 and ends the quarter at 2.85. VEI during this time used some of its funds to pick up on the
belly to longer end of the curve. Meanwhile in equities, US markets continue to make new highs but the PCOMP
crashes to 6000 level due to COVID restrictions. But bargain hunters take advantage to eventually bring this back up
to 6700. We also saw large issuances like the Monde Nissin IPO and some REITs coming out. VEI also used some
funds to buy into some issues at this time.

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company’s subsidiaries:
Vantage Financial Corporation (“eBiz”)

In 2Q 2021, eBiz achieved Money Transfer volume of over 1.6 million transactions or USD 567 million versus
USD 556 million in 2Q 2020. Revenue from Money Transfer is 21% lower Y/Y to PHP161 million. Other sources
of revenue are the operations from Foreign Exchange and Ancillary Products. Revenue for this went up by 82%
Y/Y to PHP 64.5 million in 2Q 2021 from PHP 35.5 million in 2Q 2020 due to significant increase in income from
FX transactions. Meanwhile, the Company’s operating expenses is P152 million versus P168.5 million SPLY. As of
2nd quarter of 2021, the company posted a net income of P35.5 million versus P11.2 million last year, 215%
increase.



Philequity Management, Inc. (“PEMI”)

For the second quarter of 2021, PEMI registered net sales amounting to P24 million, a 48% decrease from the previous
quarter. Subscriptions amounted P394 million, down 22% from last quarter while redemptions amounted to P370
million, down 19% from last quarter. COVID-19 volatility continued to rattle capital markets with investors scramble
back to cash after over a year of turmoil and no near end in sight. Despite rallying 4.12% for the month of June, the
local bourse is down 3.33% for the year, closing at 6,901.91. Assets under management for the mutual funds increased
by P1.1 billion or 7% to P17.3 billion. This was primarily due to the increase of the Philippine Stock Exchange Index
which rose 7.12% from last quarter. We expect a continuation of subdued subscriptions and elevated redemptions as
the COVID19 pandemic remains the headline and variants of concern such as the Delta variant are wreaking havoc
in neighboring countries such as Indonesia, Malaysia and Vietnam

Key Performance Indicators
The Company sets certain performance measures to gauge its operating performance periodically to assess its overall

state of corporate health. Listed below are the major performance measures, which the Company has identified as
reliable performance indicators.

Formula June 30, 2021 December 31,2020
Current Ratio Current Asset/Current Liabilities 1823.96% 1864.01%
Acid Test Ratio iiif:vi‘é1;1\/)[/arclfsrizlfszzﬁzs i 1820.09% 1862.18%
Solvency Ratio Net Income/Total Liabilities 26.89% 116.66%
Debt-to-Equity Ratio |Total Liabilities/Total Equity 5.82% 6.49%
Debt Ratio Total Liabilities/Total Assets 6.10% 6.10%
Asset-to-Equity Ratio | Total Assets/Total Equity 105.82% 106.49%
Interest Rate Coveragd EBIT/Interest Expense N/A N/A
Return on Assets Net Income/Average Total Asset 1.50% 7.44%
Return on Equity Net Income/Average Total Equity 1.58% 7.92%
Net Profit Margin Gross Profit/Net Income 167.64% 124.04%
Book Value Per Share g?:j;;?;f?gjiigﬁgi; g}rlzfreersred 2.58 2.54

Causes for any material changes (+/- 5% or more) in the financial statements

Income Statement items — six month period ending 30-June-2021 versus 30-June-2020

21% decrease in money transfer service
Brought by lower volume of remittance transactions year on year

44%decrease in interest income
Effect of lesser investment in money market placements and lower interest rates

224% increase in trading gain/loss
Due to increase in market value of investment holdings.

91% Increase in other income
From signing bonus received from business partner and gains on foreign exchange transactions



8.16% decrease in cost of services and sales
From decrease in commission from money remittances and impact of PFRS16 on leases

26 % decrease in depreciation and amortization
Due to impact of PFRS16 and lower depreciation

62% decrease in interest and bank charges
Lower charges by bank

Balance Sheet items — June, 2021 versus end 2020

15% increase in cash and cash equivalents
Primarily due to higher MMP outstanding as of reporting date

57% decrease in loans and receivables
Primarily due to lesser receivable from Western Union

498% increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets
Largely from prepaid taxes and creditable withholding taxes.

10% decrease in non-current assets
Due to amortization of software

9% decrease in accounts payable and other current liabilities
Mostly from lesser payable to sub-agents and settlement of 2020 liabilities
180% increase in net assets attributable to shareholders

Increased subscription of units by investors

55% increase in income tax payable
Higher tax due

Geographic Concentration of Investments

Number of Percentage of Number of

Investors Investment Shares

Philippines 600 99.58% | 4,181,924,699
Foreign 9 0.42% 17,657,567

Level of FATCA Compliance

The fund has implemented standard procedures to be FATCA-compliant. Currently, the number of
investors in the company qualifying as a US person is below 1% of the total investors.



PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

PFRS 9 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

The implementation of PFRS 9 in 2018 resulted to a P1.2B impact on the Group’s retained earnings as a result of
reclassifying its investments from AFS to FVTPL considering that these financial instruments satisfy the criteria of
FVTPL business model.
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Unaudited Audited
June 30,2021 December 31, 2020

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 3,703,024,225 3,219,805,034
Loans and receivables (Note 7) 244,632,134 574,234,132
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note & 7,286,716,721 7,130,825,537
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 9) 23,862,923 3,993,305
Total Current Assets 11,258,236,003 10,928,858,008
Noncurrent Assets
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10)
Investments in an associate 119,228 119,228
Property and equipment (Note 10) 139,765,527 152,635,871
Right Of Use - Assets 17,860,760 27,531,404
Deferred tax asset 14,077,631 13,552,209
Other noncurrent assets (Note 11) 40,823,372 45,128,010
Total Noncurrent Assets 212,646,518 238,966,722

11,470,882,521 11,167,824,730
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (Note 12) 334,113,349 365,403,523
Lease Liabilities - Current Portion 13,835,456 21,083,238
Net Assets Attributable to unitholders 232,249,405 82,966,013
Income tax payable 37,043,119 18,315,095
Total Current Liabilities 617,241,329 487,767,869
Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities -
Lease Liabilities 5,488,910 8,858,065
Retirement liabilities (Note 15) 7,795,436 7,795,135
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 13,284,346 16,653,200
Total Liabilities 630,525,675 504,421,069
Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company:
Capital stock (Note 23) 4,335,181,766 4,335,181,766
Cumulative net unrealized gain on changes in fair value
of FVOCI (Note 10) 70,000 70,000
Remeasurement gains on retirement plan (Note 22) 6,285,325 6,285,325
Retained earnings - Unappropriated 6,057,986,539 5,912,712,787
Treasury stock (Note 23) (190,460,934) (190,460,934)

10,209,062,696 10,063,788,944
Non-controlling interests 631,294,150 599,614,717
Total Equity 10,840,356,846 10,663,403,661

11,470,882,521 11,167,824,730




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Period Ended (Unaudited)

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

For the Quarter Ended (Unaudited)

June 30, 2021

June 30, 2020

REVENUES
Money transfer service 96,026,212 121,866,639 46,781,421 54,458,512
Money changing 32,451,841 81,640,865 15,036,064 67,800,394
Interest income 92,478,871 166,270,149 45,487,047 79,525,604
Trading Gain/Loss 55,174,889 (44,404,656) 259,627,652 400,558,860
Income from Mutual Fund 117,243,927 108,680,027 59,958,890 50,813,504
Others 115,665,935 11,371,883 35,931,760 (30,341,921)
509,041,674 445,424,908 462,822,835 622,814,953
EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses (Note 14) 146,564,193 157,309,579 68,592,503 71,760,072
Cost of services and sales 50,589,823 55,082,875 26,414,118 22,446,575
Depreciation and amortization 27,650,412 37,138,170 13,374,808 17,265,416
224,804,428 249,530,623 108,381,429 111,472,062
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 284,237,246 195,894,285 354,441,406 511,342,890
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Interest and bank charges — net (1,040,406) (2,775,089) (464,520) (1,224,032)
Others (80,573,169) (53,474,568) (91,439,106) (51,086,211)
(81,613,575) (56,249,656) (91,903,626) (52,310,243)
Income/Expense 202,623,671 139,644,629 262,537,780 459,032,648
Extra-Ordinary Income/(Exp.) -
Impairment Loss - - - -
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 202,623,671 139,644,629 262,537,780 459,032,648
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX -
Current 33,070,662 30,752,793 22,245,119 15,433,743
Deferred - _
33,070,662 30,752,793 22,245,119 15,433,743
NET INCOME (LOSS) 169,553,009 108,891,836 240,292,661 443,598,905
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 145,273,752 106,238,789 217,866,817 417,648,661
Minority interests 24,279,257 2,653,046 22,425,844 25,950,244
169,553,009 108,891,835 240,292,661 443,598,905
Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent 0.0346 0.0253 0.0519 0.0995




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Period Ended (Unaudited)

June 30,2021

June 30, 2020

CAPITAL STOCK - 1 par value

Authorized - 5,000,000,000 shares

Issued and outstanding - 4,199,582,266 shares
Balance at beginning of year

Stock issuance cost of a subsidiary

Stock dividends issued

4,335,181,766

4335,181,766

Balance at end of period

4,335,181,766

4335,181,766

VALUE OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE S ECURITIES

Balance at beginning of year 70,000 70,000

Reclassification of Financial Instruments

Unrealized Gain/(loss)

Balance at end of period 70,000 70,000

REMEAS UREMENT GAINS (LOSSES) ON RETIREMENT PLAN

Balance at beginning of year 6,285,325 683,709

Comprehensive income - -

Balance at end of period 6,285,325 683,709

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)

Balance at beginning of year 5,912,712,787 5,528,299,898

Net income (loss) 169,553,009 108,891,835

Share in Minority Interest (24,279,257) (2,653,046)

Stock Dividend

Balance at end of period 6,057,986,539 5,634,538,687

TREASURY SHARES (Note 17) (190,460,934) (190,460,934)

MINORITY INTEREST

Balance at beginning of year 599,614,717 556,737,233

Additional non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 7,400,176 3,713,655

Total income and expenses recognized during the period 24,279,257 2,653,046

Balance at end of period 631,294,150 563,103,934
10,840,356.,845 10,343,117,161




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period Ended (Unaudited)

June 30, 2021

June 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income (loss) before Tax 202,623,671 139,644,628
Trading Gains/Losses (55,174,889) 149,241,865
Depreciation and amortization 27,650,412 37,138,170
Interest expense 1,040,406 2,775,089
Dividend income 6,957,270 (4,646,718)
Interest income (92,478,871) (166,270, 149)
Operating income before working capital changes 90,617,999 157,882,884
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: - -
Decrease (increase): - -
Receivable 323,016,866 602,009,554
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (16,090,402) (4,470,965)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other (41,906,809) (282,324,508)
Net cash provided by (used for) operations 355,637,653 473,096,966
Interest paid (1,040,406) (2,775,089)
Income tax paid (14,342,638) (48,518,461)
Dividends received 6,731,912 4,009,432
Interest received 99,289,361 167,256,220
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 446,275,883 593,069,068
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - -
Decrease (increase) in: - -
Property and equipment (22,540,988) (7,761,219)
Decrease (increase) in FVPL/HTM (97,199,271) (25,526,315)
Net Proceeds from issuance/redemption of shares 7,400,176 3,713,655
Net Proceeds from issuance/redemption of units 149,283,392 50,846,354
Decrease (increase in) other assets - -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 36,943,309 21,272,475
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY - -
Increase/(decrease) in loans - -
Cash used in financing activities - -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 483,219,191 614,341,543

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING

3,219,805,034

2,504,042,772

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF

3,703,024,225

3,118,384,315

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements



VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.

(Formerly iVantage Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

Corporate Information

Vantage Equities, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines and was
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 20, 1992.
The primary business of the Company is to invest in, acquire by purchase, exchange, assignment
or otherwise of the capital stock, bonds, debentures, promissory notes and similar financial
instruments. The Company’s shares are publicly traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Parent Company’s shares are publicly traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

On June 20, 2017, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved Article 3 of Articles of Incorporation
to change its principal address from 2005 East Tower PSE Centre, Ortigas Center, Pasig City,
Metro Manila, Philippines to 15th Floor Phil. Stock Exchange, 5th Avenue corner 28th Street,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City, Metro Manila, Philippines. The Amended Articles of
Incorporation was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 26, 2017.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the
following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”):

Place of Percentage of Ownership
Name of Subsidiaries Incorporation 2021 2020 2019
Vantage Financial Corporation (Formerly
VFC Services, Inc.) (VFC) Philippines 100.00 100.00 100.00

eBIZ Financial Services, Inc. (eBIZ

Financial)* Philippines 100.00 100.00 100.00
iCurrencies, Inc. (iCurrencies) Philippines 100.00 100.00 100.00
Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. (PBF) Philippines 100.00 100.00 100.00
Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income

Fund, Inc. (PFCFF) Philippines 100.00 100.00 100.00
Philequity Alpha One Fund, Inc.(PAOF)** Philippines 100.00 100.00 100.00
Philequity Global Fund, Inc.(PGF)*** Philippines 100.00 100.00 100.00
Philequity MSCI Philippines Index Fund, Inc.

(PMIF) Philippines 66.96 68.57 69.18
Philequity Management, Inc. (PEMI) Philippines 51.00 51.00 51.00

*Indirectly owned through VFC

** Incorporated on February 13, 2019
**% Incorporated on June 24, 2019)

*** Incorporated on December 15, 2017

The Parent Company is the ultimate parent of the Group.

On November 11, 2017, the respective BOD of the corresponding Funds decided to shorten the
corporate life of IC, PRF, PBF and PFCFF until December 31, 2017.



As of December 31, 2019, clearance for liquidation of these Funds is pending with the SEC.
VEC

VFC was incorporated in the Philippines and is engaged in the fund transfer and remittance
services, both domestic and abroad, of any form or kind of currencies or monies, as well as in
conducting money exchange transactions as may be allowed by law and other allied activities
relative thereto. VFC has an existing International Representation Agreement (Agreement) with
Western Union Financial Services, Inc. (Western Union) covering its fund transfer and remittance
services until December 20, 2022. VFC receives remuneration for the services provided to
Western Union in accordance with the terms stipulated in the Agreement.

On January 23, 2018, the SEC approved the amendment of its Articles of Incorporation to change
its company name from eBusiness Services, Inc. to Vantage Financial Corporation.

eBiz Financial

eBiz Financial is wholly owned by VFC. eBiz Financial was incorporated on April 11, 2005 and
started commercial operations on May 9, 2005. eBiz Financial is engaged in general financing
business. On April 7, 2015, eBiz Financial’s BOD decided to shorten its term of existence until
October 31, 2015. This was approved by the stockholders on August 1, 2015.

iCurrencies

iCurrencies, Inc. was incorporated on February 3, 2000 and started commercial operations on
May 31, 2000. iCurrencies is organized primarily to engage in the business of buying and selling
of foreign currencies.

In May 2001, iCurrencies effectively ceased its business of buying and selling currencies as a
result of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Circular No. 264, issued on October 26, 2000. Among
others, the circular required additional documentation for sale of foreign currencies and required
Foreign Exchange Corporations (FxCorps) to have a minimum paid-up capital of 50.00 million.

The Circular effectively aligned the regulations under which FxCorps are to operate to that of
banks. To avoid duplication and direct competition with its previous major stockholder,
iCurrencies ceased its business of buying and selling foreign currencies.

As of June 30, 2021, the management intends to retain the dormant status of the Company until a
viable plan to revive its operations is drawn up. In the meantime, iCurrencies is sustained by
interest income on its short-term deposits.

PBF

PBF was incorporated in the Philippines, and was registered with the SEC on May 6, 2008 under
the Philippine Investment Company Act (ICA) (Republic Act 2629) as an open-end mutual fund
company. PBF is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfolio of peso-denominated fixed-income and equity securities. The initial
investment amounted to £25.00 million.

On November 11, 2017, the BOD decided to shorten the corporate life of the Fund until
December 31, 2017. This was ratified by the stockholders on September 1, 2018.

PFCFF

PFCFF was incorporated in the Philippines, and was registered with the SEC on April 10, 2008
under the Philippine ICA as an open-end mutual fund company. PFCFF is engaged in selling its
capital to the public and investing the proceeds in diversified portfolio of foreign currency
denominated fixed-income securities. As of December 31, 2017, PFCFF has not yet launched its
capital shares to the public. The initial investment amounted to £25.00 million.



On November 11, 2017, the Board of Directors (BOD) decided to shorten the corporate life of the
Fund until December 31, 2017. This was ratified by the stockholders on September 1, 2018.

PAOF

Philequity Alpha One Fund, Inc. (the Fund) was incorporated in the Philippines, and was
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 13, 2019. The
primary activities of the Fund are to subscribe for, invest and re-invest in, sell, transfer or
otherwise dispose of securities of all kinds, to acquire, hold, invest and reinvest in, sell, transfer or
otherwise dispose of real properties of all kinds; and generally to carry on the business of an
open-end investment company in all the elements and details thereof as prescribed by law.

On August 30, 2019, the SEC approved the Fund’s application to register the Offer Units under
the provisions of the Securities Regulation Code of the Philippines (Republic Act No. 8799). On
December 9, 2019, PAOF launched its units to the public.

PGF

Philequity Global Fund, Inc. (the Fund) was incorporated in the Philippines, and was registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 24, 2019. The primary activities of
the Fund are to subscribe for, invest and re-invest in, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of
securities of all kinds, to acquire, hold, invest and reinvest in, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of
real properties of all kinds; and generally to carry on the business of an open-end investment
company in all the elements and details thereof as prescribed by law.

As of June 30, 2021, the Fund has not yet started its commercial operations pending the
registration under the Philippine Investment Company Act (Republic Act No. 2629) as an open-
end mutual fund company with the SEC. The Fund just got its SEC permit to offer securities for
sale last January 20, 2021

PMIF

PMIF was incorporated in the Philippines, and was registered with the SEC on December 15,
2017 under the Philippine ICA as an open-end mutual fund company. PMIF is engaged to
subscribe for, invest and re-invest in, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of securities of all kinds,
including all types of stocks, bonds, debentures, notes, mortgages, or other obligations,
commercial papers, acceptances, scrip, investment contracts, voting trust, certificates, certificates
of interest, and any receipts, warrants, certificates, or other instruments representing any other
rights or interests therein, or in any property or assets created or issued by any all persons, firms,
associations, corporations, organizations, government agencies or instrumentalities thereof; to
acquire, hold, invest and reinvest in, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of, real properties of all
kinds; and generally to carry on the business of an Open-End Investment Company in all the
elements and details thereof as prescribed by law.

On January 2019, PMIF launched its shares to the public.

PEMI
PEMI was incorporated in the Philippines on March 15, 1994 and is primarily engaged in the
management of mutual funds.

PEMI serves as the full fund manager of the following Mutual Funds (collectively referred to as
“the Funds”):

e Philequity Fund, Inc. (PEFI)

e Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc. (PDIF)
e Philequity Peso Bond Fund, Inc. (PPBF)

e Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc. (PPSE)

e  Philequity Resource Fund, Inc. (PRF)



e  Philequity Strategic Growth Fund, Inc. (PSGF)

e Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. (PBF)

e Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income Fund, Inc. (PFCFF)
e Philequity Dividend Yield Fund, Inc. (PDYF)

e  Philequity MSCI Philippines Index Fund, Inc.(PMIF)

e  Philequity Alpha One Fund, Inc.(PAOF)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), which are measured
at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso and all values
are rounded to the nearest peso unit except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements of the Group provide comparative information in respect of the previous
period. In addition, the Group presents an additional statement of financial position at the
beginning of the earliest period presented when there is a retrospective application of an
accounting policy, a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in the financial
statements. The Group adopted PFRS 9, Financial Instruments using the full retrospective
approach.

Statement of Compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in compliance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis of Consolidation

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared based on the same reporting period as the
Parent Company using consistent accounting policies. All significant intra-group balances,
transactions, income, expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in the consolidation.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Control is achieved when the Parent Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. Specifically, the Parent Company controls an investee if and only if the Parent
Company has:

e power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

e exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

o the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Parent Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

e the contractual arrangement with the other voting shareholders of the investee;
e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
o the Parent Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Assets, liabilities, income, expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) of a subsidiary are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Parent Company gains control
until the date the Parent Company ceases to control the subsidiary.



A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Parent Company loses control over a subsidiary, it:

e derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
recognizes the fair value of the consideration received,;

recognizes the fair value of any investment retained,

recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit
or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Parent Company had
directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities.

Non-Controlling Interest
Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets not owned, directly

or indirectly, by the Parent Company and are presented in the consolidated statement of income,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position, separately from equity attributable to the Parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except

that the Group has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting January 1,
2018. Except as otherwise indicated, these changes in the accounting policies did not have any
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Group:

e Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

e Amendments to PFRS 4, Applying PFRS 9 Financial Instruments with PFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

e Amendments to PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, Measuring an
Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 -
2016 Cycle)

e Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property

e Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Standard that has been adopted and that is deemed to have significant impact on the financial
statements or performance of the Group is described below:

e PFRS 9, Financial Instruments
PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. The Group and Parent Company has adopted PFRS 9 using the full
retrospective approach.

(a) Classification and Measurement



Under PFRS 9, debt financial assets are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), amortized cost (AC), or fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI). The classification is based on the Company’s business model for
managing the financial assets and whether the financial instrument’s contractual cash
flows represent “solely payments of principal and interests” or “SPPI” on the principal
amount outstanding.

The assessment of the Company’s business model was made as at January 1, 2016. The
assessment of whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows are SPPI was made based
on the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the financial assets.

(b) Impairment
The adoption of PFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group’s measurement of
impairment losses for its financial assets — from PAS 39’s incurred loss approach to a
forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. Under PFRS 9, the Group is
required to provide ECL for financial assets at AC and other debt instruments classified
as financial assets at FVTOCI. The allowance is based on the ECLs associated with the
risk of default in the next twelve months unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk (SICR) since origination or the financial assets are impaired where lifetime
ECL is provided.

Upon the adoption of PFRS 9, the Group assessed that its cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and investment in amortized costs are considered low credit risk financial
assets as of January 1, 2017. Accordingly, the Group assessed that the impact of
recognizing 12-month ECL for these financial assets is not significant.

e PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts
with
customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the
consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and
recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under PFRSs.

The Group adopted PFRS 15 using the full retrospective method, effective January 1, 2017.
Under this method, the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial
application or only to contracts that are not completed at this date.

The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers generally include service income,
commission income, share in foreign exchange differential, money changing gains and
income from business partners.

The Group undertook a comprehensive analysis of the impact of the new revenue standard
based on a review of the contractual terms of its principal revenue streams with the primary
focus being to understand whether the timing and amount of revenue recognized could differ
under PFRS 15.

For all of the Company’s revenue streams, the nature and timing of satisfaction of the
performance obligations, and, hence, the amount and timing of revenue recognized under

PFRS 15, is the same as that under PAS 18.

The adoption of PFRS 15 had no significant impact to the statements of financial position,
statements of comprehensive income and statements of cash flows.

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
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The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based
on current or noncurrent classification. An asset is current if:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as noncurrent.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities,
respectively.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the Group’s functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency using the Philippine
Dealing System (PDS) closing rate prevailing at the reporting date and foreign currency-
denominated income and expenses, at prevailing exchange rates at the date of transaction.
Foreign exchange differences arising from revaluation and translation of foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities are credited to or charged against operations in the year in
which the rates change. All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the prevailing closing exchange rate as of the date of initial transaction.

Unrealized foreign exchange gain

This account pertains to the unrealized foreign exchange gain earned by the Group from the
maturity of their US$ denominated short-term deposits and the revaluation made for their NDF.
Any foreign exchange gain earned is lodged as unrealized since, upon maturity of the deposits,
the entire proceed, including interest earned, is retained in the Group’s US$ bank account.
Unrealized foreign exchange gain is recognized for the valuation of foreign currency denominated
short-term deposits and revaluation of the NDF at month-end.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of
three (3) months or less from the date of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each statement of financial position
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
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measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting date.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Date of recognition

The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Purchases or sales of financial instruments that require delivery of assets and liabilities within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the trade
date.

Initial recognition of financial instruments

Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration given. The initial
measurement of financial instruments includes transaction costs, except for financial instruments
at financial assets at FVTPL.

‘Day 1’ difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ difference) in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset.
In cases where transaction price used is made of data which is not observable, the difference
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between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing
the ‘Day 1’ difference amount.

In 2020 and 2019, there were no ‘Day 1’ differences recognized in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets

For purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is an ‘equity instrument’ if it is a non-
derivative and meets the definition of ‘equity’ for the issuer (under PAS 32, Financial
Instruments: Presentation), except for certain non-derivative puttable instruments presented as
equity by the issuer. All other non-derivative financial assets are ‘debt instruments’.

Financial assets are classified in their entirety based on the contractual cash flows characteristics
of the financial assets and the Group’s business model for managing financial assets. The Group
classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at FVTPL, financial
assets at FVTOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments), financial
assets designated at FVTOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments) and financial assets measured at AC.

Contractual cash flows characteristics

The Group assesses whether the cash flows from the financial asset represent SPPI on the
principal amount outstanding. Instruments with cash flows that do not represent as such are
classified at FVTPL.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are
repayments of principal or amortization of the premium/discount).

In making this assessment, the Group determines whether the contractual cash flows are
consistent with a basic lending arrangement, i.e., interest includes consideration only for the time
value of money, credit risk and other basic lending risks and costs associated with holding the
financial asset for a particular period of time.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility
in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount
outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

Business model

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Group 's business model is not assessed on
an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on
observable factors such as:

e How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel;

e The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed;

e How managers, if any, of the business are compensated.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst

case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a
way that is different from the Group's original expectations, the Group does not change the
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classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

As of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 , the Group has financial assets at FVTOCI
amounting to £0.57 million included in ‘Other noncurrent assets’ in the statement of financial
position.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Debt financial assets that do not meet the amortized cost criteria, or that meet the criteria but the
Group has chosen to designate as at FVTPL at initial recognition, are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Equity investments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the FVTPL
designates an investment that is not held for trading as at FVTOCI at initial recognition. The
Fund’s financial assets at FVTPL include equity securities held for trading purposes and equity
investments not designated as at FVTOCIL.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Fund
manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.
Financial assets at FVTPL are carried at fair value and gains and losses on these instruments are recognized
as ‘Trading and securities gain (losses) - net’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Interest earned on these investments is reported in the consolidated statement of income under ‘Interest
income’ while dividend income is reported in the consolidated statement of income under ‘Dividend
income” when the right of payment has been established. Quoted market prices, when available, are used to
determine the fair value of these financial instruments. If a financial asset at FVTPL has a bid and ask
price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances shall
be used to measure fair value. If quoted market prices are not available, their fair values are estimated
based on market observable inputs. For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, fair
value is determined by using appropriate valuation techniques.

As of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL consists of
investments in corporate bonds, government securities, equity securities, mutual funds and
derivate assets.

Derivatives classified as FVTPL

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date in which a
derivative transaction is entered into or bifurcated, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values of derivatives (except
those accounted for as accounting hedges) are taken directly to the consolidated statement of
income under ‘Unrealized foreign exchange gain’. The Group have currency forwards (NDF)
which are considered as stand-alone derivatives as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a
non-derivative host contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative is separated
from the host contract and accounted for as derivative if all the following conditions are met:

e the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to
the economic characteristic of the host contract;

e aseparate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of the derivative; and
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o the hybrid or combined instrument is not measured at fair value with fair value changes
charged through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost

A debt financial asset is measured at amortized cost if (i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and (ii) the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are
initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less any impairment in
value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees and costs that are integral part of the EIR. The amortization is included in
‘Interest income’ in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and is
calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost consist of ‘Cash and cash equivalents’, ‘Loans and
receivables’ and ‘Investments at amortized costs’.

Reclassifications of financial assets

The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, there is a change in the
business model for managing the financial assets. Reclassifications shall be applied prospectively
by the Company and any previously recognized gains, losses or interest shall not be restated.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.
The classification of financial liabilities at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which
the financial liabilities are incurred and their characteristics.

As of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Group has no financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Other financial liabilities

This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading or not designated as at
FVTPL at the inception of the liability. Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value and are subsequently carried at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying
the effective interest method of amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and
any directly attributable transaction costs.

This category includes ‘Accrued expenses and other liabilities’.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (where applicable, a part of a financial asset, or part of a group of financial
assets) is derecognized when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control
over the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control over the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
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the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is not contingent
on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of default, and
event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and all of the counterparties. This is not generally
the case with master netting agreements where the related assets and liabilities are presented gross
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Expected credit loss

PFRS 9 requires the Group to record ECL for all loans and other debt financial assets not
classified as at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. ECL
represent credit losses that reflect an unbiased and probability-weighted amount which is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. ECL allowances will be measured at amounts equal to either (i) 12-month
ECL or (ii) lifetime ECL for those financial instruments which have experienced a SICR since
initial recognition. The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that results from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.
Lifetime ECL are credit losses that results from all possible default events over the expected life
of the financial asset.

Definition of default

Generally, the Group defines a financial asset as in default for purposes of calculating ECL when
the contractual payments are past due for more than 90 days. As part of the qualitative
assessment, the Company also considers and a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness
to pay to determine if a counterparty has defaulted.

SICR

To determine whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk in the financial assets, the
Group compares credit risk at initial reporting date against credit risk as at the reporting date. The
Group uses judgment combined with relevant reasonable and supportable historical and forward-
looking information which are available without undue cost and effort in calculating ECL. The
Group assumes that instruments with an external rating of "investment grade" from published data
providers or other reputable agencies and maturities of less than 1 year at reporting date are low
credit risk financial instruments and accordingly, does not have SICR since initial recognition.

For treasury exposures, a downgrade of two notches for investment grade and one notch for non-

investment grade security indicates SICR since origination. The Group also presumes a SICR for
receivables that are past due for 30 days. Consideration of events which caused the downgrade is
relevant. Evaluation should also include historical and forward-looking information.
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Assessment of ECL on a collective basis

The Group evaluates impairment of financial assets individually for those that are individually
significant and collectively for those that are not. The Group groups the financial assets based on
profile of customer and its payment terms and history for the collective impairment.
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Staging assessment

A three-stage approach for impairment of financial assets is used, based on whether there has
been a significant deterioration in the credit risk of a financial asset. These three stages then
determine the amount of impairment to be recognized.

For non-credit-impaired financial instruments:

e Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired debt financial assets which have not experienced a
SICR since initial recognition. The Group recognizes a 12-month ECL for Stage 1 debt
financial assets.

e Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired debt financial assets which have experienced a SICR
since initial recognition. The Group recognizes a lifetime ECL for Stage 2 debt financial
assets.

For credit-impaired financial instruments:
Financial instruments are classified as Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment.

ECL parameters and methodologies

For financial assets such as “Receivables”, the Group applied the simplified approach using
provision matrix that considers historical loss experience adjusted for current conditions and
forward-looking inputs and assumptions. For ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ and ‘Investments at
amortized cost’, the Group applied the general approach in measuring ECL that considers
assessment of significant increase in credit risk and adjustments for forward-looking information.

Forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and its
measurement of ECL. A broad range of forward-looking information are considered as economic
outputs such as Consumer Price Index (CPI), exchange rates, Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
growth rates, imports and exports, Philippine Stock Exchange index (PSEi), stock prices and
unemployment rates. The inputs and models used for calculating ECL may not always capture all
characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative
adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences
are significantly material.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off its financial assets when it has been established that all efforts to collect
and/or recover the loss has been exhausted. This may include the other party being insolvent,
deceased or the obligation being unenforceable.

Investment in an Associate

Associates are entities which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not
control or joint control over those policies. In the consolidated financial statements, investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share in the net assets of the
associate, less any allowance for impairment losses. Goodwill relating to an associate is included
in the carrying value of the investment and is not amortized nor tested for impairment. The
Group’s share in an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in the associate’s equity
reserves is recognized directly in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses,
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unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Profits and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associate.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and
any impairment in value. The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its construction
cost or purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the property and equipment
to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to expense in the year in which such costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures
are capitalized as additional costs of property and equipment.

The cost of an item of property and equipment also includes costs of dismantlement, removal or
restoration and the related obligation that the Group incurs at the end of the useful life of property
and equipment.

When each major repairs and maintenance is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item of property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. Such costs are capitalized and amortized over the next major repairs and maintenance
activity.

Depreciation and amortization commences once the property and equipment are available for use
and are computed using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the property and
equipment as follows:

Office condominium 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Office improvements 10 years
Transportation equipment 4-5 years
Server and network equipment 3 years
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years or term of lease, whichever

period is shorter

The useful lives, residual values, and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the periods, residual values, and method of depreciation and
amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property
and equipment. Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in
use and no further depreciation and amortization are charged to the consolidated statement of
income.

When property and equipment are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are eliminated from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is credited to or charged against the consolidated statement of income.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction or development and is stated at
cost. This includes costs of construction, equipment, borrowing costs directly attributable to such
asset during the construction period and other direct costs. Construction in progress is not
depreciated until such time when the relevant assets are substantially completed and available for
its intended use.

Software
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Development costs of software, which are included under ‘Other noncurrent assets’ account in the
consolidated statement of financial position, are capitalized and treated as intangible assets
because their costs are not an integral part of the related hardware. Amortization is computed
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of 3 years for software and 2 years
for website.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU’s) fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the CGU to which it belongs. Where
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement
of income in the expense category consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income. After such reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognized for any non-controlling interest and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously-held interest, if any, over the fair value of the net assets
acquired. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the investment in
PEMLI, the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the investment. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the investment and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The discount rate reflects
management’s estimate of the risks specific to the investment.

Where the recoverable amount of the investment is less than the carrying amount of the
investment, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment loss relating to goodwill cannot be
reversed in future periods.

Revenue Recognition

The Group follows a five-step model to account for revenue arising from the contracts with
customers. The five-step model is as follows:
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Identify the contract(s) with customer

Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation

Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

opo o

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The Group exercises judgment, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms
of payment. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to
determine if it is acting as principal or agent.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized for
revenues:

Service income

Service income comprises PEMI’s management and other related income. Fees earned from
management services provided by the Company to the managed funds over a period of time are
recognized over time as the services are rendered and in accordance with the Management and
Distribution Agreement. Management fees are computed using a fixed percentage based on the
average NAV of the managed funds computed on a daily basis. The other fees such as
commissions are recognized upon subscription and sale of the Funds’ common shares.

Money transfer service income

This represents the commission received by the Group from Western Union for every money
transfer service provided by the former for the latter. Revenue is recognized when the money
transfer service with the customer has been processed, which is when Western Union
acknowledges the transaction. The Group concluded that it is acting as an agent on its remittance
services with Western Union. The Group is providing to Western Union a series of distinct
services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer. Accordingly, the
revenue on remittance services is recognized over time.

Share in foreign exchange differential

Western Union establishes the rates (on a daily basis) by which the currency in which money
transfer service transaction at originating currency is converted to the payment currency. A
foreign exchange differential gain arises when the rate set by Western Union at the date of receipt
of the cash at the originating currency is different from the rate set on the date of the actual
release of the cash under

the payment currency. Share from foreign exchange differential based on the percentage as
agreed with Western Union is recognized when remittance service is rendered and the originating
currency is converted to the payment currency. The Group concluded that it is acting as an agent
on its remittance services with Western Union. The Group is providing to Western Union a series
of distinct services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer.
Accordingly, the revenue on remittance services is recognized over time.
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Money changing gain
Money changing gain is related to the Group’s retail foreign exchange operations in the branches.
Funds received from the customers denominated in the originating currency are translated to the
payment currency based on the exchange rate set by the Western Union (WU). The difference
from the specified exchange rate and the current Philippine Dealing and Exchange Corporation
(PDEXx) closing rate is recognized as money changing gain. Income from money changing is
recognized when the money exchange service has been rendered.

Other income - net

Other revenues include web development and production, media sales, portal and E-commerce
revenues and digital public relations (PR) and digital strategy revenues. Revenue from web
development and production is recognized based on the percentage of completion method. The
stage of completion is assessed by reference to the stage of completion of the development,
including completion of services provided for post-delivery service support. Revenue from media
sales, portal and E-commerce is recognized at the time that services are rendered. Revenue from
PR and digital strategy is recognized when services are rendered in accordance with the
provisions of the contracts.

Income from business partners

This represents fees received by the Group from partner companies for other retail services in the
branches including over-the-counter payment collection and airline ticketing services. Income
from business partners are recognized at the time the services are rendered.

Trading and investment securities gains- net

Trading and investment securities gains - net includes all gains and losses from changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVPL, derivatives and gains and losses from disposal of AFS
investments and financial assets at FVPL and other financial instruments. Revenue recognized
from disposal of AFS equity investment is gross of the commission expense paid to the broker.
Revenue is recognized on trade date upon receipt of confirmation of sale of investments from
counterparties.

Interest income

Interest income on interest-bearing placements is recorded on a time proportion basis taking into
account the effective yield of the asset. Interest on financial instruments is recognized based on
the effective interest method of accounting.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Realized foreign exchange gain

Realized foreign exchange gain pertains to the realized gain from the settlement of US$
denominated NDF and from the buy and sell of US$ denominated currency. Realized gain from
NDF pertains to the difference between the agreed upon forward rate and the fixing rate used in
the actual settlement of the NDF, translated into Philippine peso. While realized gain from the
buy and sell of US$ denominated currency is the difference between the spot rate from the day the
currency was bought to the day it was sold. Realized foreign exchange gain is recognized when
the transactions are settled and gains are translated into Philippine peso.

Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognized when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an
asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
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Cost of services and sales
Cost of services and sales, which include personnel costs and other expenses incidental to the
Group’s primary services, are expensed as incurred.

General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses, which include the cost of administering the business and are
not directly associated with the generation of revenue, are expensed as incurred.

Finance Costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Finance costs are calculated using the EIR method in accordance with PAS
39, Financial Instruments and recorded as interest expense once incurred.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset.

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b) A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

(c) There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified
asset; or

(d) There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the re-assessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and at
the date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Group as a lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets
are classified as operating leases. Fixed operating lease payments are recognized as expense in
the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreement.

Retirement Cost

e-Business has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan and the Parent
Company, and PEMI have unfunded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans covering
substantially all of their regular employees.

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if
any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset
ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method. This method reflects services rendered by employees up to the date
of valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries. Actuarial
valuations are conducted with sufficient regularity, with option to accelerate when significant
changes to underlying assumptions occur.

Defined benefit costs comprise of the following:

a. service cost;
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b. net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset; and
c. remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset.

Service costs, which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on
non-routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are
recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time, which is determined by
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in
the consolidated statement of income.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly
to the Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market
price is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash
flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the
maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected
period until the settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher
than the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined
benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Income Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amounts expected to be recovered from or
paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences and
carryforward benefits of excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused net operating
loss carryover (NOLCO) at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of MCIT and
NOLCO to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized.
Deferred income tax, however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
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each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable income will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
periods when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting period. Movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities arising from changes in tax rate are charged or credited to income for the
year.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income are also
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes related to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Value-added Tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if applicable.

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from
purchases of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as a payable in the
consolidated statement of financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or
services (input VAT) exceeds VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT), the excess
is recognized as an asset in the consolidated statement of financial position to the extent of the
recoverable amount.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the shares are
sold at a premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to ‘Capital
paid-in excess of par value’ account. Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance, such as
underwriting, accounting and legal fees, printing costs and taxes are chargeable to ‘Capital paid-in
excess of par value’ account. If the ‘Capital paid-in excess of par value’ is not sufficient, the
excess is charged against the ‘Retained earnings’.

When the Parent Company issues more than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained
for each class of stock and the number of shares issued.

Own equity instruments which are acquired (treasury shares) are deducted from equity and
accounted for at weighted average cost. No gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Parent Company’s own
equity instruments.

‘Retained earnings’ represents accumulated earnings of the Group less dividends declared.

Dividends on Common Shares

Dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when
approved by the respective BOD and shareholders of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
while stock dividends are deducted from retained earnings upon distribution. Dividends for the
year that are approved after reporting are dealt with as subsequent events.

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is determined by dividing net income (loss) attributable to

common shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year with
retroactive adjustments for any stock split and stock dividends declared.
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Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the
effects of any dilutive potential common shares. As of June 30,2019 and December 31, 2018,
the Parent Company does not have dilutive potential common shares.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an
interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Ifit is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain that the
expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated statement of income, net of any
reimbursement.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the probability of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Period

Any post year-end events after reporting date that provide additional information about the
Group’s financial position at the reporting date (adjusting events), if any, are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements, when material.

Segment Reporting

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. Financial information on business
segments is presented in Note 6. The Group’s assets producing revenues are located in the
Philippines (i.e., one geographical location). Therefore, geographical segment information is no
longer presented.

26



Standards Issued but Not Yet Effective

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are listed below. The listing consists of standards and
interpretations issued, which the Group reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The
Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they become effective. Adoption of
these pronouncements is not expected to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements unless otherwise indicated.
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Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2021

Amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -

Phase 2

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial

reporting effects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly

risk-free interest rate (RFR):

o Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as
a result of IBOR reform

o Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships

o Relief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated
as a hedge of a risk component

The Company shall also disclose information about:

o The about the nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arising from
financial instruments subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manages those risks;
and

o Their progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the
entity is managing that transition

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2021 and apply retrospectively, however, the Company is not required to restate prior periods.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2022

Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments added an exception to the recognition principle of PFRS 3, Business
Combinations, to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, or Philippine-IFRIC 21, Levies, if incurred separately. It
also clarified that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Company will apply these amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after

January 1, 2022.

Amendments to PAS 16, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs
of producing those items, in profit or loss.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2022 and must be applied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first
applies the amendment.

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contract - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a
contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”.
The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both
incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities. General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. The Company will apply
these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
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Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippines Financial Reporting
Standards,

Subsidiary as a first-time adopter

The amendments permit a subsidiary, joint venture or associate that elects to apply
paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation differences using the
amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to PFRS.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2022 with earlier adoption permitted

Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, Fees in the '10 per cent’ test for
derecognition financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of
the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The Company will apply the
amendments to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

Amendments to PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in fair value measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclude
cash flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of PAS
41. An entity applies the amendment prospectively to fair value measurements on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2022
with earlier adoption permitted.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2023

PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 provides updated information about the obligation, risks and performance of
insurance contracts, increases transparency in financial information reported by insurance
companies, and introduces consistent accounting for all insurance contracts based on a current
measurement model. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023. Early application is permitted but only if the entity also applies PFRS 9 and
PFRS 15.

Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-Current
The amendments clarify the following to specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current:

What is meant by a right to defer settlement;

That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period;

That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral
right;

That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification.
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Deferred effectivity

Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss
of control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or
joint venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or
loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business,
however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or
joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the FRSC postponed the original effective date of January 1, 2016 of
the said amendments until the IASB has completed its broader review of the research project
on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions
and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

Significant Accounting Judgement and Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets, and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, as well as disclosure of
contingent assets and contingent liabilities, if any. Future events may occur which will cause the
judgments and assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change
in judgments and estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements as they become
reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Judgments
The following are the critical judgments and key assumptions that have a significant risk of

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

a.

Determination of whether the Group is acting as a principal or an agent in its revenue
transactions

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against the following criteria to determine
whether it is acting as a principal or an agent:

whether the Group has primary responsibility for providing the goods and services;
whether the Group has inventory risk;

whether the Group has discretion in establishing prices; and

whether the Group bears the credit risk.

If the Group has determined it is acting as a principal, revenue is recognized on a gross basis
with the amount remitted to the other party being accounted for as part of costs and expenses.

If the Group has determined it is acting as an agent, only the net amount retained is
recognized as revenue.
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The Group assessed that it is acting as an agent due to the following characteristics of its
relationship with the Funds:

e The Group does not have significant ownership over the Funds.

e The Funds have the substantive and practical ability to exercise its kick-out rights held by
the BOD. The Group can be terminated anytime without any grounds/cause and without
payment of penalty by the majority vote of the BOD of the Funds or 2/3 votes of the
outstanding capital.

e There are no interlocking directors between the Group and the Funds and only 1/7 BOD
representation between the Funds and the Group.

e The remuneration agreement between the Group and the Funds are the customary
arrangement for the services it renders and is negotiated on an arm's length basis.

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations applicable afier

January 1, 2018

Assessing when the Group satisfies a performance obligation, i.e. transfer control of a
promised good or service to the customer, over time or point in time involves significant
judgment. Accordingly, it affects the timing of revenue recognition for these performance
obligations.

Based on management’s assessment, performance obligations related to remittance services
(money transfer service income, share in foreign exchange differential, income from business
partners and income from money changing services), are series of distinct services that are
satisfied over time. As the Company renders the services, the customers simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance of these
services.

In measuring the revenue to be recognized over time, management assessed that output
method faithfully depicts the Company’s performance in transferring control of the services
to the customers. Since the Company bills a fixed price per transaction with the customers
upon satisfaction of the performance obligations, management believes that this right to
consideration from a customer corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
Company’s performance completed to date. Accordingly, the Company has applied the “right
to invoice” practical expedient in measuring the revenue recognized over time.

Contractual cash flow characteristics test

In determining the classification of financial assets under PFRS 9, the Group assesses whether
the contractual terms of these financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, with interest
representing time value of money and credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding. The assessment as to whether the cash flows meet the test is made in the
currency in which the financial asset is denominated. Any other contractual term that changes
the timing or amount of cash flows (unless it is a variable interest rate that represents time
value of money and credit risk) does not meet the amortized cost criteria.

Business model test

The Group manages its financial assets based on business models that maintain adequate level
of financial assets to match expected cash outflows and maintain adequate level of high
quality liquid assets while maintaining a strategic portfolio of financial assets for trading
activities.

The Group’s business model can be to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash flows
even when sales of certain financial assets occur. PFRS 9, however, emphasizes that if more
than an infrequent number of sales are made out of a portfolio of financial assets carried at
amortized cost and those sales are more than insignificant in value (either individually or in
aggregate), the entity should assess whether and how such sales are consistent with the
objective of collecting contractual cash flows.
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Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

a. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of derivative assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements cannot be derived from active markets, these are determined using a
valuation technique that include the use of mathematical model. The inputs to this model are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of
liquidity and identification of comparable investments and applicable credit spreads to arrive at
adjusted quoted market prices.

The carrying values and corresponding fair values of derivative asset and liabilities as well as
the manner in which fair values were determined are discussed in more detail in Note 5.

b. Credit losses on financial assets
The Fund reviews its debt financial assets subject to ECL annually with updating provisions
as necessary. The measurement of credit losses requires judgment, in particular, the
estimation of amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining
the credit losses and the assessment of SICR. Elements of the model used to calculate ECL
that are considered accounting estimates and judgments, include among others:

Segmentation of financial assets to determine appropriate ECL model and approach

o Criteria for assessing whether there has been SICR in the debt financial assets and so
allowances be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment

e Segmentation of financial assets when ECL is calculated on a collective basis
Development of ECL models, including formula and various inputs

e Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic variables and scenarios

c.  Recognition of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable income will be available against which the differences can be utilized.
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
to be recognized, based upon likely timing and level of future taxable income.

4. Fair Value of Financial Assets

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. Fair values are
obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropriate.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable and other current liabilities and notes
payable
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The carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of these financial
instruments.

Investments in amortized costs, financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL (except derivatives)

Fair values are generally based on quoted market prices. For the Group’s equity investments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, fair values are determined based on quoted closing prices
or bid price in cases when the former is not available in the PSE for 2018 and 2017, respectively.
For the Group’s fixed income investments classified as financial assets at FVTPL, fair values are
determined based quoted market prices, if available. If market prices are not readily available or
if the securities are not traded in an active market, as in the case of fixed income investments
classified as investment in amortized costs, fair values are estimated using adjusted quoted market
prices of comparable investments or using the discounted cash flow methodology. For the
Group’s UITFs and mutual funds classified as financial assets at FVTPL, fair values are estimated
using published net asset value (NAV).

Derivative instruments (included under financial assets and liabilities at FVPL)

Fair values are calculated by reference to the prevailing interest differential and spot exchange
rate as of the reporting date, taking into account the remaining term to maturity of the derivative
instruments. For the stock warrants, fair values are determined based on quoted prices.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, account payable and other liabilities. The Group also has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as deposits.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risks. The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each risk and these are
summarized below.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties
failed to discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by
trading only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis so that the Group’s exposure to
credit losses is not that significant. Since the Group trades only with recognized third parties,
there is no requirement for collateral.

As of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
equal to the carrying values of its financial assets since it does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements that will mitigate credit risk exposure.

The fair values of financial assets at FVPL and AFS investments represent the credit risk
exposure as of the reporting date but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future
as a result of changes in fair value of the said instruments.

5. Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organized into major operating business segments as
follows:

a. Investment holdings
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The investment holdings segment deals in the acquisition and sale of financial instruments.

b. Remittance services
The remittance services segment provides the infrastructure and services as the largest direct
agent for money transfer of Overseas Filipino Workers. Beyond the remittance business, this
segment facilitates the fulfillment of e-commerce transactions and serves as a payment
platform for any Business to Business (B2B) or Business to Customers (B2C) initiative.

c. Internet online-related products and services
This segment engages in the business of internet online-related products relating to database
search engine, such as, but not limited to, conceptualizing, designing, illustrating, processing
and editing web sites; to engage in other pre-production and post-production work on web
sites in the internet; and to sell and market said products in the form of advertising of finished
products in the domestic or export market.

d. Mutual fund management
This segment deals in the management of mutual funds.

Management monitors the operating results of each segment. The measure presented to manage
segment performance is the segment income before tax. Segment income before tax is based on
the same accounting policies as the consolidated net income except that intersegment revenues are
eliminated only at the consolidation level. Transfer pricing between segments are on arm's length
basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.

The Executive Committee (Excom) is actively involved in planning, approving, reviewing, and
assessing the performance of each Group's segment. The Excom oversees the Group's decision
making process. The Excom's functions are supported by the heads of each of the segments,
which provide essential input and advice in the decision-making process. The Chief Operating
Decision Maker is the Chief Executive Officer.

The Group mainly operates and generates revenue in the Philippines. Thus, geographical segment
information is not presented.

The Group has no significant customers which contribute 10.00% or more of the consolidated
revenues.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Cash on hand 189,107,795 468,686,325
Cash in banks 2,150,099,740 1,655,863,360
Short-term placements 1,363,816,690 1,095.255,349
Total 3,703,024,225 " 3,219,805,034

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made
for varying periods of one to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the prevailing short-term investment rates.
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7. Loans and receivables

This account consists of:

June 30,2021 December 31, 2020

Due from:
Western Union 103,050,214 470,513,806
Broker 16,287,834
Business partners 76,954,281 9,702,394
Accrued interest 30,194,509 37,005,000
Receivable from sale of investment 38,592,600 38,592,600
Receivable from related parties and employees 1,714,499 1,532,331
Trade Receivables 66,769,666 73483114
317,275,769 647,117,079
Less allowance for credit losses (72,643,635) (72,882,947)
Total 244,632,134 574,234,132
Aging of loans receivable is presented below:
No. of Days Due from Others Total
WU,
Brokers,
Subagents
and Affiliates
Current (1-30 days) 211,913,503 105,362,266 317,275,769
31— 60 days ; -
61 — 90 days - -
Over 90 days - -
TOTAL 211,913,503 105,362,266 317,275,769

Due from Western Union represents pay-outs of e-Business for fund transfers and remittance
services, which were not yet reimbursed by Western Union as of June 30, 2021 and December 31,
2020.

Due from business partners include receivables from counterparty banks for cash to be delivered
to the branches.

The terms and conditions of loans and receivables are as follows:

e Due from Western Union, sub-agents, and business partners generally have one to four days’
term.

e Due from broker is usually collectible within three days.

Trade receivables include receivables from advertising and web development services which
are normally collectible within two to four months after billing is made. This also includes
management and commission income earned from the funds managed by the Group.

e  Other receivables are all short-term in nature.
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8. Financial Assets at FVPL
This account consists of investments in:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Quoted

Bonds 5,541,870,211 5,709,677,848
Mutual Funds 893,520,515 912,120,746
Equities 851,325,995 507,345,643
Derivatives - 1,681,300

7,286,716,721 7,130,825,537

Equity Securities
Quoted equity securities pertain to investments in stocks listed in the PSE.

Mutual Funds

Mutual funds represent investment in an open-end mutual fund. These investments are valued at
net asset value per share (NAVPS) which is computed by dividing the mutual funds’ net assets
(total assets less total liabilities) by the total number of redeemable shares issued and outstanding
as of reporting date.

Debt Securities
Debt Securities consists of government bonds, mostly FXTNs ,PSALM and RTBs, and corporate
bonds.

Derivative instruments
These are outstanding currency forward contracts entered by the company.

Mutual Funds

Mutual funds represent investment in an open-end mutual fund. These investments are valued at
net asset value per share (NAVPS) which is computed by dividing the mutual funds’ net assets
(total assets less total liabilities) by the total number of redeemable shares issued and outstanding
as of reporting date.

9. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
This account consists of:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Prepaid expenses 4,342,962 1,324,291
Input value-added tax 19,190,289 3,455,342
Others 1,780,243 1,900,860
Less Allowance for Impairment (1,450,571) (2,687,188)

23,862,923 3,993,305

Prepaid expenses comprise rent, insurance, taxes and uniforms.
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10. Property and Equipment

Details of this account are presented below:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Cost 615,585,320 570,008,726
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 475,819,793 417,372,855
139,765,527 152,635,871

11.

Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

June 30,2021 December 31,2020
Rental and other deposits 22,852,762 23,200,661
Software and website - net 13,611,908 15,834,000
Others 7,268,304 7,754,101
43,732,974 46,788,762
Less: Allowance for credit losses (2,909,603) (1,660,752)
40,823,372 45,128,010

In 2001, the Parent Company sold its investment in Lucky Star at 96.59 million (a company
incorporated to operate off-front on betting stations in the Philippines) since management believes
that there is a significant uncertainty with respect to the recovery of this investment due to the
Supreme Court decision to shut down Jai-alai operations. The related receivable from the sale,
which is collectible over ten years at certain pre-agreed installment terms until 2012, has been
fully provided with allowance for credit losses. As collections are actually received, an
equivalent amount of the allowance will be reversed and credited to income.

The goodwill recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position pertains to the excess
of the acquisition cost of the Parent Company over the book value (BV) per share of the
investment in PEMI in 1994. The Group performed its annual impairment test on December 31,
2016. The relationship between the investment’s current BV per share (considered as the
recoverable amount) and its original carrying value (CV) per share, among other factor, when
reviewing for indicators of impairment. As of December 31, 2018, the current BV per share of
PEMI is above the investment cost per share. There is no impairment loss recognized on
goodwill as at 2019.

37



12. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

June 30, 2021

December 31, 2020

Due to sub-agents and brokers 106,161,010 128,597,170
Accrued expenses 157,291,645 133,976,840
Trade 16,668,995 64,907,022
Output value added tax 7,705,835 12,368,529
Documentary stamp tax 5,387,086 14,486,384
Expanded withholding tax 4,972,459 5,056,339
Derivative liabilities 29,950,003 3,378,309
Others 5,976,317 2,632,930

334,113,349 365,403,523

Terms and conditions and nature of the liabilities follow:

e Due to sub-agents and brokers are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled

on a two to four days’ term.

e Accrued expenses consists of accruals for profit sharing costs, vacation leave and sick leave
conversion, insurance, security services, cash delivery services, utilities, media buys and

others.

e Trade payables include amounts due for purchase of government bonds.
e Other payables include withholding taxes payable, documentary stamp tax payable, merchant

deposits, sundry credits and others.

Trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables are all short-term in nature. These are

settled within one year after the reporting period.

13.

Revenues

This account consists of:

June 30,2021 June 30,2020

Money transfer service 96,026,212 121,866,639
Money changing 32,451,841 81,640,865
Interest income 92,478,871 166,270,149
Trading Gain/Loss 55,174,889 -44.404,656
Income from Mutual Fund 117,243,927 108,680,027
Others 115,665,935 11,371,883

509,041,674 445,424,908
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14. General and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

June 30, 2021

June 30, 2020

Salaries, wages and allowances 71,434,311 80,064,081
Outside services 30,428,705 27.233,030
Rent and utilities 18,268,575 14,479,931
Taxes and licenses 7,867,151 8,487,832
Office supplies 3,062,399 3,831,699
Transportation and travel 7,022,913 9,930,914
Professional fee 1,844,748 1,854,388
Representation 454,464 1,072,796
Advertising 63,602 171,252
Others 6,117,326 10,183,656

146,564,193 157,309,579

15.

Retirement Costs

The Parent Company and PEMI have unfunded, noncontributory defined benefit pension plans
covering substantially all of their qualified employees. Vantage Financial Corp. has a funded,
noncontributory defined benefit pension plan. The funds of the plan of Vantage Financial Corp
are being administered and managed by the Trust & Investment Services Group of Union Bank of

the Philippines.

16.

Equity

The details of this account as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are shown below:

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Authorized shares
(at par value*) 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
Issued shares 4,335,181,766  4,335,181,766  4,335,181,766  4,335,181,766
Treasury stock (135,599,500) (190,460,934)  (135,599,500)  (190,460,934)
Outstanding shares 4,199,582,266  4,144,720,832 4,199,582,266  4,144,720,832

The track record of the Parent Company’s registration of securities in compliance with the
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 Annex 68-D 1(I) follows:

a. Authorized Shares

Authorized Number
Date of SEC Approval Type of Shares of Shares
October 27, 2015 Common 5,000,000,000
January 12,2009 Common 2,250,000,000
October 20, 1992 Common 1,900,000,000
b. Stock Dividends
Date of SEC Approval Percentage

39



December 18, 2015 100%
January 12, 2009 25%

c. Number of Shareholders

Year End Number of shareholders
December 31, 2020 611
December 31, 2019 613

On May 19, 2015, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the declaration of stock dividends
equivalent to a total of 2.10 billion representing 2,099,791,133 shares at 1.00 par value per share,
payable to all stockholders of record as of January 8, 2016. The said dividends were distributed
on February 3, 2016.

Dividend declaration of subsidiaries

On February 3, 2016, the BOD and two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital of the PEMI
approved the declaration of stock dividends equivalent to a total of 1,785,000 shares at 100.00 par
value per share, payable to all stockholders of record as of February 15,2016. The said dividends
is paid on March 14, 2016.

On December 11, 2013, the BOD of e-Business approved the declaration of stock dividends worth
150.00 million to stockholders of record as of December 30 ,2013. Stock dividends were
distributed on October 10, 2014.

On January 19, 2019, the BOD and shareholders representing two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding
capital of PEMI approved the declaration of stock dividends equivalent to a total of 3,570,001
shares at £100.00 par value per share, payable to all stockholders

Increase in Authorized Capital Stock of Subsidiaries

On June 20, 2017, the BOD and two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital of Ebusiness Services,
Inc. approved the increase in the authorized capital stock from 400,000,000 shares with par value
of 1.00 per share in 2016 to 800,000,000 shares with par value of 1.00 per share in 2017. The
SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock on January 23, 2018.

Of the said increase, 400,000,000 shares of capital stock has been actually subscribed and paid by
the existing shareholders of the Corporation by way of stock dividends to be paid out of the
retained earnings which was declared on June 20, 2017.

17.

Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
This includes: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control, or are controlled by, or under common control with, the Group; (b) associates; and, (c)
individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives
them significant influence over the Group and close members of the family of any such
individual.

Related party transactions with subsidiaries are eliminated in the consolidated financial

statements. These transactions are based on terms similar to those offered to non-related parties
and are settled in cash.
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18. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

June 30, December 31,
2021 2020
(a) Netincome (loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Parent Company 145,273,752 P384,412,889
(b) Weighted average outstanding shares 4,199,582,266 4,199,582,266
(c) Basic/Diluted earnings per share (a/b) 0.0346 0.0915
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